
CITY OF NAPAVINE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 Monday – June 3, 2024 – 6:00 PM 

 
  
                   

Deborah Graham, 
Position 1 
 

Amy Hollinger 
Position 2 
 
Arnold Haberstroh, 
Position 3 
 
Amy Morris 
Position 4 
 
Scott Collins 
Position 5 
 
Bryan Morris 
PW/CD Director   
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Napavine 
407 Birch Ave SW 
P O Box 810 
Napavine, WA  98565 
360-262-3547 
 
City Website 
www.cityofnapavine.com 

 

    

  
 

 

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

II. INVOCATION 

III. CALL TO ORDER 

IV. ROLL CALL 

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – As Presented 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

1) Planning Commission Meeting– May 20, 2024 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 

1) NMC 13.08.010 – 13.08.140 Sewer System 

2) Mobile Food Vendors (Table per Commissioner Hollinger) 

VIII. CONSIDERATION 
 

IX. CITIZEN COMMENT 
 

X. GOOD OF THE ORDER  
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

Planning Commission Meeting is held in person and via 
Teleconference. 

Teleconference Information 
Dial-in number (US): (720) 740-9753 

Access code: 8460198 
To join the online meeting: 

https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8 
 

http://www.cityofnapavine.com/


NAPAVINE PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

                     May 20, 2024 6:00 P.M. 

 Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

INVOCATION: Invocation was led by Director Morris.  

CALL TO ORDER: 
Commissioner Graham opened the regular Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:00 PM 

 

ROLL CALL:   
Planning Commission present: Commissioner Hollinger, Commissioner Graham, and Commissioner Morris. 
Commissioner Hollinger motioned to excuse Commissioner Collins and Commissioner Haberstroh, seconded by 
Commissioner Morris. Vote on Motion 2 aye, 0 nay.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – As presented:   
Commissioner Morris motioned to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Commissioner Hollinger. Vote 
on motion 2 aye, 0 nay. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

Commissioner Hollinger motioned to approve minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting on May 6, 2024, 
seconded by Commissioner Morris.  Vote on motion 2 aye and 0 nay. 

OLD BUSINESS:  

1. NMC 13.08.010 – 13.08.140 Sewer System 
Executive Assistant Katie Williams provided Commissioner Graham with a brief explanation of the conversation 
that took place at the prior meeting. Katie Williams also provided WAC 246-272A-0025 that outlines the 
connection to public sewer system that includes the 200 ft. requirement, but technically it is up to the Lewis 
County Health department.  

Discussion continued, Director Morris is going to check with Lewis County, and Executive Assistant Katie 
Williams is going to pull a few codes from different cities to bring to the next meeting. 

Commissioner Morris motioned to table NMC 13.08.040 – 13.08.140 Sewer System, requested that Katie provide 
a few examples of other city codes, and Bryan will speak with the county, seconded by Commissioner Hollinger. 
Vote on motion 2 aye, 0 nay. 

NEW BUSINESS:  

1. Mobile Food Vendors 
Executive Assistant Katie Williams spoke regarding the 3 examples of mobile food trucks codes that were 
presented. She stated that Ocean Shores code is from 2022 but is missing a couple important items that 
Marysville has in its code. Commissioner Hollinger and Commissioner Morris agreed. Commissioner Hollinger 
will highlight areas of the Marysville code that they would like to be merged with Ocean Shores and get back to 
Katie for the next meeting to present.  

Commissioner Morris motioned to table until next meeting, that gives Commissioner Hollinger enough time to 
merge Marysville and Ocean Shores codes together, seconded by Commissioner Hollinger.  Vote on motion 2 
aye, 0 nay. 

CONSIDERATION:  

Director Morris spoke on Well 3 PFAS issues, received notice from a webinar testing facility that is claiming that 
there may be issues with cross contamination with false positives on the PFAS testing because of the shelf 



Napavine Planning Commission Meeting 
May 20, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

City of Napavine is an equal opportunity provider and employer 

life/handling issues. Is thinking about moving the rights of Well 3 over to the city hall location. Will provide an 
update when we find out more information.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 6:40 pm 

Commissioner Morris motioned to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Hollinger. Vote 2 aye, 0 nay.                                     

These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online at 

https://fccdl.in/rB0X1Wh3u8. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Bryan Morris, Community Development/Public Works Director            Planning Commission Chairperson 

https://fccdl.in/rB0X1Wh3u8




�����������	
������������	����������������
�����������

����	
���	��������
������
������
������������



�����������
��������
�����	���������
��������������
���������
��

������� !���
���
���"
�����������
����������
�����	
����
����
�
���#����
�������#
�������
����

������$�����������"
���
%��������	����#��	����$���������������"
���
%�� ������
����
�"
����	
�"
�����	

�����	
����
���������#
������������������	�	
�"
���������������&����	�����������������
��������	
����	

���������������
�����
����'�
���������
����������	���#�
�"
�	���'�����
��������������
��'

����������	
�����	���	

(���
�"
����	����
���������
��
)���
	�����#��������
������������
������
����	
�����
����*
���

	
�����
�����
)���
�	
���
	���������������+
���
������������	#���
���
����,���
��
����	
�����
���

�
�
������"
���������	
�&����	�����������	����������
���������#����������"����
����
���������

��
���
�������
����������-�	
��./0�12�34�516���
����	
�����
������
��
)���
	�������"�	
����

�
������������������
�����������#����
	����
���������������
���
����	
�����
������������
�����
�

�	�	�������������������������������	����

���
����
��#����
��
��������	�����������
)���
	������"
��'����
�#����
�����
��
��/���
�����������
)���


���	������������#���������#����
�����
��
������
�',��
�����
��	���
��
�������
)���������#����
��

��
��
������
���
�����������
����������������
�������������������������"
	���
����
"
���

7��������
����"
���
��������	
����"�������������
����
����	���������
���������/��������
�����

�
������������	
�

8#�����������
�	
�����
���������
�	�������������"�9

/�������
������������#
�

���������	
�9

.
)���������#�������������
��������
��������������
	������
	9

���
�������������
��
�������������
�������	����������	�������������
��������������
����


����
����$��������������
���������

�	�������������
�	����

�%9

.
����������������
�������	���������������	��������������
���
�$��������:�44���������55�44�����%9

�����������������������������������	��"
����������	������#�����������	
������	�������������

�#����������9

;"���������������������������������
���������	�����
�
�����
�����	����������
�������
	�������"��


����
���9���	

7����
�
�����	�	������������������
����#
�����	�����
���
��

/���
���������������
����
���
���������������
�
����	��������������
���
��,��
�����
�������#��

���	������������
��������
���$���������
��	
�����+��
�%����
����
�����
�������������	���������������

��
���
������
����
	���
���$����������
����
	�#����
�����	�����
�����+��
�%��,��
�����
�������#��

��
���������������	������������������
����
	�	������
�������
������������	��������
���#����
����

����
<���
��������	��������
�����������

�



���������	
���������	
��	
�����	��
������	������	�����	��	��������	���	�����	����	����	������

��	�������	���������	��	���������	����	���	 �����	!��	��	��	��	�����	��	��������

������������

�	�����		���������	
��	
�����	!"��#��	������	����	�����	��������	��	��������	$���	 �����

������	����	��	����	�����%��% ���

�	��
����	�	���������	
��	
�����	!&�'���	
�����	��	������	(�'�	�����	�	���	����	������

���	�������	����	 ��	����	������	��	���������	) ���	����	��	���$��	�������	� ��	�����$��*�

�������
+����	,���	-���	.�$��	)�����	-���	+����*	������	�	/�����	�������	����

�������	��	 ����	��	�������	�����	��	��$	����	��������	��	��������	��	�	����������	���

�����	��	��	����	���	��	0����	�����	��	����

���������	��
���������
����������	�����������������
����

������������������������


����	)���	�������*	��$	����������	�$� 	�����������	 ��	����	��	��������	��	��	��	����

�������	��	�����%��% ��	���	����	�����	����������	1�	���	����������2	�	����	��	������	��	 �����	�

�������	� ��3�	���	��	��������	��	�	���������	����


����	���	�	$�����	��	���������	 ��	�������	 ����	��	���� 	����	������	��	��	����	�������	��

�����%��% ��4

5�������	���	��	6-7	������	���	����	��$��	����������	��	����	������

8�	������	���������	
��	���$���	����	����	������	��	����	�������	��	�����%��% ��	���	����

�����	��	��������	����	�����	����	���	��	�����	�������	��	��	����	��	��	��������

+�����$�	���	�	�����	�������	��	 ����	!�	�����	$�����	�����$���	��	�$������	��	�����	$�����

�����	)���������	����	������*�	8�	�����$���	���	�	���	��	�	������	�����	��	������	�������	�����

9�������	��	���� �	��	0��	�����	���	������	���	��	���	�:����	��	���	�������	���	��

 ���	��	�����$��	��	�������	���������

1�	��	���	����	��	����	 ���	�	����3�	����%���	�������	������	�	 ���	�����	��	����	������2	�������

�����	�	�����	���;��	��	�	�� 	������	���	,����	��	�����	�	�����	���;��	��	0����	�������	����	�����

���������	��	���	�����������	.���	����	������	��	�����	��	���������2	����	��	��	���	 ��

0�����������	���	�����	 ������	��	����%���	�������������	����	 ����	�����	����	�����$��	��

�����%���%������	�������������

��������


����	��$	����������	��0�������	���	���������	��	�������	 ���	���	��	���	����	������	 ���	����	��

����	�����������	/�������	��	���������	�:�������	���	��	��������2	����	������	��	�	�����$��

�� %����	 ��	���	��	��������	��	�����	�	�������	���	�	:����	 ��	��	0����	��	��������	�������	��	�

����������



���������	
������������	�	
���
�
����
�	��	������
���
�
����
�����������
��������������������
�	�������	����������
��
�	�
�	�	�
����

�������	����	�	
�������	�	������	
������ ������������
!��	
����	
�	�������������	�����������
����������������	���	
��
������
���

�����
������������!�	�	�	
����	�
��
���������
��������		��
���"�������������	��	����������
���������
������������
���#�
�	����
������

�����
�������	���������	�
��
��������
�

$�% %�&�����������
�
���������
���
���
�	
�����������	���'����(��)������	��
�
�
���*������+�,
���

Follow us:

����������	
��������	
������
������������
��������������
���������������������������������

���
����������������������������������������
��
������������� �������
���������

���!
�����������	��������
�����������"��������

��������	
����

��������	�
������
�
����������	��������������	���������������������������

���������������������
�����������
�������������������������
�
����������

���������
����
�	�������������������� ����������	����������������������������

������!������"#$%����"#"&������
���������������������'��
�����!
�	�'�����	

�������!
�	����(
������

)*+��'���,��-��./���('���+/











��������	
��

�������������������

������� !

	
���"	"����#$��%&��

	
���"�"����#��'(����)$(��*�

	
���""������+���,���)$(��'�+�&�

	
���"-"����.,,%/�*�,%0��(%+&��+*��1�+�&�

	
���"2"����3(�(+4���)$(��'�+�&�

	
���"5"����6�)$(��*���%1(&(%+&��+*�,('(���(%+&�

	
���"7"�������)$�+08�

	
���"
"�����9�'��(%+�

	
���":"����.��,(0��(%+&�

	
���	""������0(&(%+�0�(���(��

	
���"	"�#$��%&��

;<��=>?=� ���@��<� ��<A=��?�� ����=?�B�C��D>�CA�������E�F�G��@��C�B��C��D�H��<����<�����I�G�E�� J

=?�E�����<�����IK �B� ����@�?��� �C�H���H��A�C��� �A� �<�����BAG>� J�AGG�H�E�F�G��@��C�B��C��D�A �A

 =���AG�AE����IJ�A�C����=?�������<��<�AG�<�A�C�H�G@A?���@�?� �C��� �A�C�B� ���? L�MN?CL�OPOOQRSS

T�UVL

	
���"�"�#��'(����)$(��*�

W��A==?�B�C�=�?E���@�?�> ���@�E�F�G��@��C�@A��G���� �E> ��F���F�A���C�@?�E��<����EE>���I

C�B�G�=E����C�=A?�E����=?��?����A�I�E�F�G��@��C�@A��G��I��=�?A���D�H��<����<�����I�G�E�� J��X��=���<A�

=�?E�� �A?������?�Y>�?�C�@�?�E�F�G��@��C�@A��G���� ����=?�BA���=?�=�?�I����?� �C����AG�Z����D�C� �?��� J

���H��< �A�C��D� >�<�@A��G���� � <AGG���E=GI�H��<�AGG�=?�B� ��� ��@��<� ��<A=��?L�MN?CL�OPOOQRSS�T�UVL

	
���""���+���,���)$(��'�+�&�

WL�N=�?A��? ��@�E�F�G��@��C�@A��G���� �E> �!

[L�\AB��A�BAG�C�F> ���  �G���� ��H��<��<�����IL

OL�\AB��A�BAG�C��=�?A���D�=�?E���H��<��<��]��D�̂�>��I�<�AG�<�C�=A?�E���L

UL�\AB��=?��@��@�=�?E�  ����@?�E�=?�=�?�I��H��?�����=�?A������=?�E� � L

;<��_�H�A �G��̀>����=AG�̂�C��� ��>??�����<?�>D<�N?C��A����OPOSQRR[J�=A  �C�W=?�G�OJ�OPOSL

_�H�A �G��̀>����=AG�̂�C��̂<A=��?�[aLOU�̀Nbcde�fNNg�he_gc_i jAD��[��@�S



����������	
���	�����������������
�����������������������
����������������������������

��	������������������������������������������������������	���������������������

��������
�����	�������������������
	���������������������������������������������	��������

����	���������	���

���������� ������������������������� ���� ������������	���
���	������

!��"������������	���
�������#	��������������
���������������	����

���$������� ���������������������������������������

%��&��������������������� ��������� �������������'�������������������	��������������������������

('����)*))+,--�.�/0�

123453676�899:;<=�9:>?@A:BC�?B=�<D<B@C3

������� ���� �
��������������������������� �����������
������E

F��G�����������H�����

I��J��������������������	�������������������������������������K �����	��������������������

�� ��������������������������
�	�����������������������������
����������
�� ���������

�� ����������������

)��&������������������������������ ���� �
�����������
������  +���������������������������

���J��
� ��������+'�����&��������������G�����+� +L����F����������������������������������

����������������������
����

���J���������������������������M�����N���O���(�O���O+��������O+G0���P��������Q��������

���
������
����
��������
����� ���������������������������������������������('����)*)/+,R,�.�ST�'���

)*))+,--�.�/0�

1234536U6�VA@ABW�X<YZAX<[<B@C3

F�����������������	��� ������������
���� ��������������� ���������������#	��������

���M������������������������
�������������������� �������������� ����������������������������

�����+� +����

���M��
	������������������������������������������������������������������+� +�����	��������

��������������������������������� �������
�����('����)*))+,--�.�/0�

1234536\6�]<YZAX<=�̂X:DACA:BC�?B=�9A[A@?@A:BC3

F��P���������������������������������	���� ���+�������������
��������� ���
	������	������
����

������� ���� ����� ����������� �����������

P���M��
�������	��
�������������
	����������	���'������
��)*)-+,,I���������F�����)��)*)-�

M��
�������	��
������������������IS�)/��'�K"!��''��$!M�KM% &����)�� �-



����������	
������������	���������
��������������������������������
����������
���������������

���	
�	���������	��������������������
�����������������
�����	
�������	�������������	
��

����������	
���������������������������������������������	��������������������������������

�����������	��������������������������

��� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������!
��������������

���������	�������	�������������������"������������������������
�������������	������������������

��������

 �� ���������������

	�������������������������������������������������	���������������������

�����������������������
��������	
�����������
��������������"�����

���������������������������������#$��	����%&����$'$$�())�*�+,�

-./01/232�4567869:;/

<�� ��������������������������
�����	����"������������������	
����������������=�����������
����

	�

	�������������������
���������������������������
�������	�����������>��#?�$+�')'�

���@���������������

	��������������������������������������������������	�����������>��#?�$+�')'�


����

	����������������������

��� ����������������������
����
����

	����������A	��
��������
���B�����
��������%&����$'$$�())

*�+,�

-./01/2.2�CD6EFGHI9/

>���������������������������	��������������������J��������K��	�������������
�������������������

�>��#?�'?�'L'������������������������������
��������������!��	�����#'����	���������!���������

���������������������
�������M������
�	������������	
���������=��������������������������
�


�������	
����%&����$'$$�())�*�+,�

-./01/2N2�OFFPH:QGHI9R/

<��<�
�������������
�������������������������������������������A	��������������������	���
���������

%�������������	���
����������������������	���
�����,�����������������������������S��������

��	�����T���������������������
���B��"�����������<����
������������
����������������������U

#��<�
��������������
�������������������������������������������
���	�����������������

$��<�
���������������������	���������������
��������������������������������
����������������

+��<�
������������
�����������������������
���������������������������
�������������%��������
���

����,�

)��<��������
����������

M�����
������>	��
�������������
	���������	��&������
��$'$)�((#���������<�����$��$'$)�

���
������>	��
�����������������#?�$+�>&�KV ��&&��W ��K�X @����+����)



���������	
������
��������

���	
���	
�����	��������
���������	�����	���	
��

���������	
��������������������
�	���
��������������������
��
����������
������������


���	�
���
������������� !!�"��#�

$%&'(&$))�*+,-.-/0�,1-2+1-3&

�������
������
���
���������������	����
����	������4�	�
������
�����
����������
���	�����	�


�����
�	
��
�	
5

���6���������������������
�����	
���	������
�����
	��
��
��������������	��7

���6��������������������	
�������
���8�
��4��	���������
���������	
��������
�����
�����������

	���������������	
���7

���6���������������	����
�������	
������	������
��	��	��	7

9�����:�	
���	�����	�;��4�������
������	�������������7�	��

<�����:�	
��
�	��������
��������
����8�������������
���������������
��	�����������������	�	��

�	����������������� !!�"��#�

6���=���	
���>������	���������������
�
����4�������	�������!�  ?@��	����������@����!�

=���	
���>������	���������	�
���?A����>��BC<�D��9�E<=9B=F G	4��!����!













13.08.010 - De�nitions.

As used in this article the following definitions shall apply:

"Agreement" means all written agreements for service, installations, meters, and special service made with any

person, firm, or corporation, or the authorized agents thereof.

"Apartment" means any multiple family dwelling having units with separate kitchen plumbing facilities.

"Applicant" means any person, firm, or corporation applying for water service or any other connection to the city

water system.

"Biochemical oxygen demand (B.O.D.)" means the quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxygen of organic

matter under standard laboratory procedure in five days at twenty degrees Celsius, expressed in parts per million by

weight.

"Building drain" means that part of the lowest horizontal piping of drainage system which receives the discharge

from soil, waste and other drainage pipes inside the walls of the building and conveys it to the building sewer,

beginning three feet outside the inner face of the building wall.

"Building sewer" means the extension from the building drain to the public sewer or other place of disposal.

"Centum cubic feet (CCF)" means one hundred cubic feet (approximately seven hundred forty-eight gallons).

"Connection" means any physical or paid connection to the city sewer system.

"Cost" means the cost of labor, material, transportation, supervision, engineering, and all other necessary expenses

as determined by the city.

"Customer" means any person, firm, or corporation obtaining or using water service from the water system of the

city.

"Director" means the city director of the city or his authorized deputy, agent or representative.

"Disabled rate" means the basic rate payable by citizens who are eighteen years or older, are the primary rate payer

for the household, and retired from gainful employment by reason of disability with total annual household income of

forty thousand dollars or less for two or more. Or single with a total annual household income of thirty thousand

dollars or less. Those applying for the disabled rate must complete a reduced utility rate application each January.

"Duplex" means one detached residential building, vertically or horizontally attached, containing two dwelling units

totally separated from each other and designed for occupancy by not more than two families.

"Dwelling" a building or portion thereof designed exclusively for human habitation, but not including hotels or motel

units.

"Dwelling unit" means one room, or rooms connected together, constituting a separate, independent housekeeping

establishment for owner occupancy, or boarding house, or rental or lease on a weekly, monthly or longer basis, and

physically separated from any other rooms or dwelling units which may be in the same structure or on the same



property, and containing independent cooking, sleeping and sanitary facilities. All rooms comprising a dwelling unit

shall have access through an interior or exterior door to other parts of the dwelling unit. An efficiency apartment, also

known as a studio apartment, constitutes a dwelling unit within the meaning of this title.

"Equivalent residential unit (ERU) charges" shall be imposed based on usage.

"Garbage" means solid wastes from the preparation, cooking and dispensing of food, and from the handling,

storage, and sale of produce.

"Industrial wastes" means the liquid wastes from industrial processes as distinct from sanitary sewage.

"Natural outlet" means any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body of surface or groundwater.

"Out of district" means all property located outside the city limit boundaries.

"Person" means any individual, firm, company, association, society, corporation, or group.

"pH" means the logarithm of the reciprocal of the weight of hydrogen ions in grams per liter of solution.

"Properly shredded garbage" means the wastes from the preparation, cooking and dispensing of food that have

been shredded to such degree that all particles will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in

public sewers with no particle greater than one-half inch in any dimension.

"Public sewer" means a sewer in which all owners of abutting properties have equal right and is controlled by public

authority.

"Premises" means a private home, building, apartment house, condominium, trailer court, mobile home park, a

group of adjacent buildings, or property utilized under one ownership and under a single control with respect to the

use of water and responsibility for payment thereof.

"Rate payer" means a person who pays a regular charge for the use of public utility.

"Sanitary sewer" means a sewer which carries sewage and to which storm, surface and groundwaters are not

intentionally admitted.

"Senior rate" means the basic rate payable by citizens who are sixty-two years or older, are the rate payer for the

household, with total annual household income of forty thousand dollars or less for two or more. Or single with a total

annual household income of thirty thousand dollars or less. Those applying for the senior rate must complete a

reduced utility rate application each January.

"Service, commercial" means wastewater services to businesses engaged in the manufacture and/or sale of a

commodity or commodities or the rendering of a service, hotels, motels, schools, hospitals, multiple-dwelling units and

public office buildings.

"Service, industrial" means a wastewater service to a business enterprise engaged in the manufacture of products,

materials, equipment, machinery, and supplies or commodities on a substantial or major scale.

"Service, residential" means a water service to a single-family dwelling unit or a water service for residential lawn

sprinkling.



"Service, temporary" means a water service and facilities rendered for construction work and other uses of limited

duration and the water available therefor.

"Sewage" means a combination of the water-carried wastes from residences, business buildings, institutions, and

industrial establishments.

"Sewage treatment plant" means the regional sewage treatment plant of the city.

"Sewage works" means all facilities for collecting, pumping, treating, and disposing of sewage.

"Sewer" means a pipe or conduit for carrying sewage.

"Shall" is mandatory, "may" is permissive.

"Storm sewer" or "storm drain" means a sewer which carries storm and surface waters and drainage but excludes

sewage and polluted industrial wastes.

"Suspended solids" means solids that either float on the surface of, or are in suspension in, water, sewage, or other

liquids, and which are removable by laboratory filtering.

"Triplex" means one detached residential building, vertically or horizontally attached, containing three dwelling units

totally separated from each other and designed for occupancy by not more than three families referred to as a multi-

family dwelling unit.

"Unmetered service" shall refer to any sewer serve which is unmetered by the city of Napavine. Any unmetered

service shall be billed on the basis of two thousand four hundred cubic feet for every two-month billing cycle.

"Watercourse" means a channel in which a flow of water occurs, either continuously or intermittently.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.020 - Facilities installation.

The owner of any house, building or property used for human occupancy, employment, recreation or other purpose,

situated inside the district and abutting any street, alley or right-of-way in which there is now located or may in the

future be located a public sanitary sewer of the city, is required, at the owner's expense, to install suitable toilet

facilities therein, and to connect such facilities directly with the proper public sewer in accordance with the provisions

of this article, provided that such public sewer is within two hundred feet of the property line of the lot or parcel upon

which such house, building or property is situated.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.030 - Director to cause connections.

The director shall have the power in all cases, where there is a public sewer in any street or alley, to cause any owner

of land upon or adjoining such street or alley, his agent or tenant, to make a sufficient drain and proper sewer

connection from any house, building or property upon such land whenever in the opinion of the director the same is

necessary, and the officer shall thereupon give each owner, agent or tenant, or person occupying such premises not

less than five days' notice in writing specifying the time when such drain or sewer connection must be completed, and if



A.

B.

the owner, agent or tenant neglects to complete the same within the time specified, and in addition to penalties

imposed for the violation of any of the provisions of this article, the director of the city shall cause it to be done and

shall recover the whole amount of the expense thereof, together with ten percent additional as a penalty by an action

in the name of the city before any court having jurisdiction thereof, from the owner or person occupying such premises,

who shall be severally and jointly liable therefor; and the same shall constitute a lien on the premises and may be

foreclosed as provide by law.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.040 - When public sewer not available.

Where a public sanitary sewer is not available under the provisions of Section 13.08.030, the building sewer shall be

connected to a private sewage disposal system complying with the ordinances of the county health district and the

owner will sign into a developer's agreement with the city.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.050 - When public sewer becomes available.

At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property serviced by a private sewage disposal system, as

provided in Section 13.08.040, a direct connection shall be made to the public sewer in compliance with this article, and

any septic tanks, cesspools and similar private sewage disposal facilities shall be abandoned and filled with suitable

material as to prevent the same from settling or collapsing.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.060 - Private sewage system.

The owner shall operate and maintain the private sewage disposal facilities in a sanitary manner at all times, at no

expense to the city, and shall comply with the ordinances, rules and regulations of the county health district.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.070 - Unpolluted discharges prohibited.

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any stormwater, surface water, groundwater, roof run-

off, subsurface drainage, cooling water or unpolluted industrial process water to any sanitary sewer.

Stormwater and all other unpolluted drainage shall be discharged to such sewers as are specifically

designated as storm sewers or to a natural outlet approved by the city director. Industrial cooling water or

unpolluted process water may be discharged upon approval of the city director to a storm sewer or natural

outlet.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.080 - Prohibited discharge.

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

H.

I.

Except as provided in this article, no person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described

water or wastes into any public sewer:

Any liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than one hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit;

Any water or waste which may contain more than one hundred parts per million by weight of fat, grease

or oil;

Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil or other flammable or explosive liquid, solid or gas;

Any garbage that has not been properly shredded;

Any ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastics, wood, paunch

manure or any other solid or viscous substance capable of causing obstruction to the flow in sewers or

other interference with the proper operation of the sewage works;

Any waters or wastes having a pH lower than 6.0 or higher than 9.0 or having any other corrosive

property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures, equipment and personnel of the sewage

works;

Any waters or wastes containing a toxic or poisonous substance in sufficient quantity to injure or

interfere with sewage treatment processes, constituting a hazard to humans or animals, or creating any

hazard in receiving waters of the sewage treatment plant;

Any waters or wastes having a B.O.D. or containing suspended solids of such character and quantity that

unusual attention or expense is required to handle such materials at the sewage treatment plant;

Any noxious or malodorous gas or substance capable of creating a public nuisance.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.090 - Restricted discharge.

The admission into the public sewers of any waters or wastes having: (1) a five-day biochemical oxygen demand

greater than three hundred parts per million by weight, or (2) containing more than three hundred fifty parts per

million by weight of suspended solids, or, (3) containing any quantity of substances having the characteristics described

in subsection (c) of this section, or (4) having an average daily flow greater than two percent of the normal daily dry

weather sewage flow as determined by the city, shall be subject to a review and approval of the city director. The owner

shall provide, at its expense, such preliminary treatment as may be necessary to: (a) reduce the biochemical oxygen

demand to less than three hundred parts per million and the suspended solids to less than three hundred fifty parts

per million by weight, or (b) reduce objectionable characteristics or constituents to within the maximum limits provided

in this article, or (c) control the quantities and rates of discharge of such waters or wastes to comply with the limits

established by the city. Plans, specifications and any other pertinent information relating to proposed preliminary

treatment facilities shall be submitted for the approval of the city and of any applicable state departments and no

construction of such facilities shall be commenced until the approvals are obtained in writing.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.100 - Pretreatment facilities.



Where preliminary treatment facilities are provided for any waters or wastes, they shall be maintained continuously

in satisfactory and effective operation by the owner at its expense.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.110 - Control manholes.

Where required by the city director, the owner of any property served by a building sewer carrying industrial wastes

shall install a suitable control manhole in each building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement of

wastes. Such manhole, when required, shall be accessibly and safely located, and shall be constructed in accordance

with plans approved by the city director. The manhole shall be installed by the owner at its expense, and shall be

maintained by it so as to be safe and accessible at all times.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.120 - Testing.

All measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of waters and wastes to which reference is made in

Sections 13.08.070 through 13.08.130 shall be determined in accordance with "Standard Methods for the Examination

of Water and Sewage," and shall be determined at the control manhole provided for in Section 13.08.110, or upon

suitable samples taken at the control manhole. All B.O.D. and suspended solids tests shall be made on composite

samples collected proportionate to the rate of flow and over a complete operating period.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.130 - Special agreements.

No statement contained in this article shall be construed as preventing any special agreement or arrangement

between the city and any industrial concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual strength or character may be

accepted by the city for treatment, subject to payment therefor by the industrial concern.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

13.08.140 - Inspections.

The city director and any other duly authorized employees of the city bearing proper credentials and identification

shall be permitted to enter upon all properties for the purposes of inspection, observation, measurement, sampling

and testing in accordance with the provisions of this article.

(Ord. No. 611, §§ 1, 2, 8-25-20)

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/



















	6.3.24 PC AGENDA
	5.20.24 PC Minutes
	Mobile Food Trucks
	Napavine, WA Code of Ordinances 13.08
	Sewer Examples 

